# **INSTRUCTION MANUAL**

# **VDR MAINTENANCE VIEWER**

## MODEL VR-3000/VR-3000S

This manual is solely for use by the installer. Under no circumstances shall this manual be released to the user.

The installer shall remove this manual from the vessel after installation.

This manual contains no password data. Obtain password data from FURUNO before beginning the installation.



www.furuno.co.jp



## FURUNO ELECTRIC CO., LTD.

9-52 Ashihara-cho, Nishinomiya, 662-8580, JAPAN

Telephone : +81-(0)798-65-2111 Fax : +81-(0)798-65-4200

All rights reserved. Printed in Japan

Pub. No. OME-44373-B

(TOMA) VR-3000 CONFIG.

• FURUNO Authorized Distributor/Dealer

A : JUL 2008 B : JAN 09, 2009



\* 0 0 0 1 6 9 5 8 9 1 1 \*

## CONTENTS

RECORD OF MODIFICATIONS MADE IN THIS MANUAL	2
1. HOW TO SET THE PC	
2. SOFTWARE CONFIGURATION	5
2.1 Preparing the software setup	
2.2 Radar	
2.3 Serial Signal	
2.4 Analog Signal	
2.5 Digital Signal	
2.6 Audio	20
2.7 Alarm	23
2.8 Event	25
2.9 Hardware	
2.10 JB	27
2.11 Life Time	
2.12 Network	
2.13 System	
2.14 Software	31
2.15 GPS	
2.16 Vessel	34
2.17 Delivery	35
3. HOW TO BACK UP CONFIGURATION DATA	
3.1 How to Back up Configuration Data to the Startup Compact Flash (CF)	
3.2 How to Back up Configuration Data to a PC	
4. HOW TO UPLOAD CONFIGURATION DATA FROM A PC	
5. MEDIA MANAGEMENT	
5.1 Initialization	
5.2 Creation	
5.3 How to Enable Recording Area on the Backup HDD	
6. OTHER FUNCTIONS.	
6.1 Software Management	
6.2 Password Management	
6.3 Record Comparison	
6.4 Easy Setup	
6.5 Equipment Management	
6.6 PC_RAP	
6.7 Other	

# Record of Modifications Made in this Manual

Version No., Date of Modification	Software (Prog. No.)	Reason for Revision
A	VR-3000 SYSTEM 2450031-02	1 <sup>st</sup> Printing
30 June 2008	RAP 2450026-01	
В	VR-3000 SYSTEM 2450031-02	Revision
24 Dec. 2008	RAP 2450026-01	

This manual describes how to set the VR-3000/VR-3000S after installation. The outline of the setup is as below.

- Step 1. Network setting on PC and VDR
- Step 2. Software setting
- Step 3. Backup data setting
- Step 4. Software configuration from file data
- Step 5. Media management
- Step 6. Other functions

After setting up, make a backup copy of configuration data onto the CompactFlash (CF) and the PC.

#### Parts and Equipment needed

- a) PC with Internet Explorer 6.0
- b) Ethernet cross cable

# 1. How to Set the PC

Before connecting to VR-3000/VR-3000S, set the IP address and subnet mask of the PC as below. The IP address of VR-3000/VR-3000S is 10.0.0.100.

How to set IP address and subnet mask on Windows XP

- 1. Click Start, Settings, Control Panel and Network and Dial-up Connections.
- 2. Click Local Window Network, Properties and Internet Protocol (TCP/IP).
- 3. Click the **Properties** button.
- 4. Choose "Use the following address".
- Enter IP address and subnet mask: IP address: 10.0.0.102 or 10.0.0.99 (other than 10.0.0.100). Subnet mask: 255.0.0.0.
- 6. Click the **OK** button and then click it again.

#### How to set IP address and subnet mask on Windows Vista

- 1. Click Start, Control Panel, Network and Internet, Network and Sharing Center.
- 2. Click View status to show the Local Window Connection Status dialog box and click the **Properties** button.
- 3. Select Internet Protocol Version 4 (TCP/IP v4) and click the **Properties** button.
- Select "Use the following IP address" and enter IP address and subnet mask: IP address: 10.0.0.102 or 10.0.0.99 (other than 10.0.0.100). Subnet mask: 255.0.0.0.
- 5. Click the **OK** button and then click it again on the next screen.
- 6. Restart the PC.

#### How to install the Maintenance Software

Live Player V4 and the VDR Maintenance Viewer Program are included on the accessory CD. Install these programs onto the PC.

- 1. Place the CD in the PC CD drive.
- 2. The CD contents are displayed in a window. Double click on the file "view.exe". The Installation Wizard opens.
- 3. Follow the directions of the Installation Wizard.

The Live Player V4 and Maintenance Viewer are installed onto the computer. The Live Player V4 is not required for use here.

### **Connection**

Use an Ethernet cross cable to connect a PC to J14 (DATA) in the DCU.



## 2. Software Configuration

Disconnect the Remote Alarm Panel until the software configuration is completed, otherwise an alarm (grabber failure or no radar video) sounds.

### Procedure:

- 1. In the Maintenance Viewer, log in to Serviceman.
- 2. Download the configuration data from the VDR into the Maintenance Viewer.
- 3. Set each tab. (Refer from section 2.2 for further explanation).
- 4. After each tab has been set up, save the data to the VDR.

5. Lastly, click the **write** button to backup the set data to the DRU, Backup HDD and the CF.

## 2.1 Preparing the software setup

To configure VR-3000/VR-3000S software with the VDR Maintenance Viewer, do the following:

- 1. Make sure that the PC and DRU are connected securely to the DCU.
- 2. Turn on the VDR and wait about three minutes.
- 3. Download "equip.xml" from the VDR to the PC using the following steps:
  - 1. Open Internet Explorer on the PC.
  - 2. Enter the URL <a href="http://10.0.0.100/pub/">http://10.0.0.100/pub/</a> to access the VDR from the PC.
  - 3. Copy the file "equip.xml" and paste it onto the PC desktop.
- 4. Start the VDR Maintenance Viewer.
- 5. Enter the IP address10.0.0.100 in the Maintenance Login dialog box.
- Checkmark "Serviceman", enter the password and click the OK button.
   Note: Do not release the password to unauthorized personnel.

SVDR Maintenance Viewer				
Connection Maintenance Tool Help				
FURUNO Product Name : VR-3000 System Time : 06/10/2008 15:36:33	RAF LEDS SAVE NORMAL ERROR	POWER STATUS BATT DC AC	DRU Information Selected : DRU Size : 5794 MB	Backup HDD Information Selected : AREA 2 Size : 37575 MB
بسأ وسبدا وسنا فواور والعباب المبتد التنبية	ประวัติสาราย	la la culorelu		

If the connection is successful the information shown below appears in the status window.

- System Time RAP LEDs POWER STATUS
- DRU Information Backup HDD Information

If an error message appears, the IP address or password may be wrong, or the cable between the PC and VDR is not correctly connected.

7. Check the memory size of the DRU and Backup HDD that appear in the status window.

If the memory size display shows "\*\*\*\*MB" (data read error) restart the VDR. If the display still does not change, check that the DRU and HDD are correctly connected.

#### Example of acceptable memory size displays:

6 GB DRU Information Selected: DRU Size: 5564MB

6 GB DRU Information Selected: AREA2 Size: 37569MB 9GB DRU Information Selected: DRU Size: 8822MB

8. Select PC\_RAP from the Tool menu.

				x
$\bigcirc$	F	UR	UNO (	$\mathbb{R}$
	RAP LEDs			
	SAVE	NORM	AL ERROR	
	Backup HDD Information		Button	
	Selected : AR	EA 1	SAVE	
	Size: 3	7569 MB		
Alarn				
	Time 🛆	Number	Name	
	12/12/2008 13:26:49:405	311	Serial 11CH No Connection	
	12/12/2008 13:30:00:415	313	Serial 13CH No Connection	
	12/12/2008 13:30:02:411	312	Serial 12CH No Connection	

Confirm Alarm box in PC\_RAP. When a 3xx error is displayed as above, the data is not input correctly. Data settings are explained on the page 11. If error messages 094, 098, 018, 022 etc. are displayed, remove the error before going to the next step. Refer to the VDR Operator's Manual or error code list for definitions of the meanings of individual error codes.

- 9. Click the X button at the top right corner to close the PC\_RAP.
- 10. From the menu, select Maintenance> Equipment Management> Import.
- 11. Select the file "equip.xml" from the desktop and click [open].
- 12. From the menu, select Maintenance> VDR Config Management> Download. Click the **OK** button, and then [Close].

If the configuration file has already been downloaded, the 12<sup>th</sup> step is not necessary. The following explanation refers to setting individual tabs.

On the signal tab, there is an Information Area (left) and a Setting Area (right). Select the channel to set in the Information Area on the left by selecting it with the cursor, and then set it in the Setting Area on the right. The results of the updated setting are displayed in the Information Area. After setting each channel, click SET to finish.

## 2.2 Radar

Radar Setup is performed in the Radar Tab.

#### Equipment Setup:

1. Click the Radar tab.

The Radar information setup screen appears.

	VDR Maintena	nce Viewer				
_(	connection Main	tenance Tool He	lp			
		: 09/10/2008		RAP LEDS	Selected : DRV Selected	D Information : AREA 2 37575 MB
		erial Analog Rad	ar   Audio   Digit	al   Hardware   JB	ifetime   Network   System   Software   GPS   Vessel   Delivery	
Ш	Information				Setting	· / /
Ш	CH No. R1	Type No. FAR-28x7	Status OK	Check Not Comp	Set Recording Mode Image Capture Select Equipment	Reflect Equipment Check
Ш	R2	RGB interface	OK	Not Comp	Active	
Ш	R3	RGB interface	OK	Not Comp		
Ш	R4	RGB interface	OK	Not Comp	Brand	Furuno
Ш					Type No. (Equipment Name)	FAR-28x7
I					Check	Not Comp
I					Data Name	SXGA (60Hz)
I					Morizontal Resolution	1360
I					Vertical Resolution	1024
I					Horizontal Offset	159
I					Vertical Offset	38
I					PLL	1688
					CDEV	1/1 💌
					VCOSL	VCOH 💌
					Phase (0-63)	0

- 2. Select a radar channel from the Information area. For example, click the CH No.1 box to open the corresponding setup.
- 3. Click the **Select Equipment** button in the Setting Area. The following dialogue box appears.

Equipment Selection				×
Equipment Directory				
Padar     Padar     Padar     Padar     Padar     Padar     Pauses     Pauses	hxx7 non∵interlace) non∵interlace) non∵interlace)			
Information		í.		
Category	Radar Interface	Type No	FAR-28s7	-
Brand	Furuno	Data Name	SXGA (60Hz)	
Interface	radar			
			OK	Cancel

4. Select a radar model.

For example, as in the above illustration, select Radar> Radar Interface>Furuno>FAR-28x7> SXGA(60Hz) and click the **OK** button. As in the following illustration, FAR-28x7 appears in the Type No. field in the CH. No 1 of the Information Area. Detailed information about the selected radar appears in the Setting Area.

Information			
CH No.	Type No.	Status	Check
R1	FAR-28x7	OK	Not Comp
R2	RGB interface	OK	Not Comp
R3	RGB interface	OK	Not Comp
R4	RGB interface	OK	Not Comp

If your radar model is not in the list, enter the required information manually. The setting values are the same as the previous Web Configuration values.

- 5. Click the Image Capture button in the Setting Area. Confirm the correct video signal.
- 6. If required, update the Setting Area item contents.

It is not necessary to enter information very every item in the Setting Area. For easy identification of Input Source, enter Equipment Category, Brand, Type No and Data Name.

-Settir				<b>/</b>	
Set	Recording Mode	Image Capture	Select Equipment	Reflect Equipment	Check
Activ	e				<u>P</u>
Brand				Furuno	
Type	No. (Equipment Name)			FAR-28x7	
Check				Not Comp 💌	
Data	Name			SXGA (60Hz)	
Horiz	ontal Resolution			1360	
Verti	cal Resolution			1024	
Horiz	ontal Offset			159	
Verti	cal Offset			38	
PLL				1688	
CDEV				1/1 🔻	
VCOSL				VСОН <b>—</b>	
Phase	(0-63)			0	
Sync	Туре			Separate SYNC 💌	
Horiz	ontal SYNC Polarity			Negative 💌	
Verti	cal SYNC Polarity			Negative 💌	
HD/VD	Sync Termination (Composit	e Sync)		Open 💌	
Pulse	Width for VD Detection (Co	mposite Sync) (O to 10	20 step 4)	0	
Inter	lace Type			Non-Interlace	
Inter	lace Polarity			Positive 💌	
ITRP	0 to 4092 step 4)			0	
ITRW	0 to 4092 step 4)			0	
Sampl	ing Rate			15sec	

- 7. Click the Set button to finish.
- 8. To setup multiple radars, repeat steps 2 through 7.
- 9. Click the **Check** button in the setting area to perform radar check. Results appear in the Check section of the Information Area.

To import the exact settings to another ship, save the settings of the device in the Setting Area to the PC database.

- 1. Click on **Reflect Equipment**.
- 2. Copy the file to the PC by using Maintenance> Equipment Management> Export in the menu.
- 3. Import to the other ship's VDR from the PC.

#### How to Set the Record Pattern

When there are two or more Radar units connected to the VDR, select which radar to record to.

**Note:** When using a 6 GB DRU it possible to record to 1 channel, and when using a 9 GB DRU it is possible to record to 2 channels.

1. In the Setting Area click the **Recording Mode** button. The following dialogue box appears.

Radar Save												
	Recording to DRU			Recording to BackupHDD			Sending to Network					
Recording Pattern	R1	R2	R3	R4	R1	R2	R3	R4	R1	R2	RЗ	R4
• 1	G	N	N	N	G	I	N	N	I	I	I	I
O 2	G	G	N	N	G	G	N	N	I	I	I	I
О з	G	G	G	N	G	G	G	N	I	I	I	I
O 4	G	G	G	G	G	G	G	G	I	I	I	I
G : Grouping Recording I : Individual Recording N : Not Recording												
										10	к <u>с</u>	ancel

R1-R4: 1<sup>st</sup> Radar (CH No.1)~4<sup>th</sup> Radar (CH No.4)

**G**: Records signal to the youngest radar number in a group pattern (ex; R1-R4 are grouped). If the youngest number is inactive, signal is recorded to the next youngest number in sequence within the group.

I: Indicated unit records/sends

N: Indicated unit does not record/send

2. Select a recording pattern from Patterns 1-4.

For example, the settings in the above illustration are as follows.

Recording Pattern 1: R1 signal is recorded to DRU, R2 – R4 do not record.

R1 and R2 signals are recorded to the Backup HDD, R3–R4 do not record.

Network Sending; R1-R4 all send to network.

Recording Pattern 3: Recording signal to the DRU automatically routes to the next youngest active number in the group, between R1 and R3. R4 Does not record. Example: If R1 is inactive, signal is recorded to R2.

Recording to Backup HDD: Same as DRU

Send to Network: R1-R4 all is sent to the network.

3. Update I and N as needed.

Place the cursor above either I, or N, and left click to alternate. With this, I is set to record while N is set to not record. G cannot be changed.

- 4. After completing setup, click the **OK** button.
- 5. To record settings to the database, click Reflect Equipment in the Setting Area.

#### How to Enter Information Manually

This VDR system receives in VESA (Video Electronics Standards Association) signal.

- Image signal: 0.5-1Vpp (When using composite signal, the minimum synchronization signal is 50 mV).
- Horizontal Synchronization Signal: Max. ±91146 kHz.
- Vertical Synchronization Signal: Max. 35 Hz.
- Acceptable Image Resolution: 640x480 1280x1024.
- Channel number conforms to the number displayed by the DCU.

#### To set the Radar tab, do the following:

- 1. Click the Radar tab.
- 2. Choose the channel with the entered Radar Image from the Information Area.
- 3. Check the Active box in the Setting Area and enter the Horizontal and Vertical resolution of the incoming image in the Horizontal resolution and Vertical resolution columns.
- 4. Click the **Set** button.
- 5. Click the **Image Capture...** button. The Image Capture dialogue box appears.
- 6. Click the **Test** button in the Image Capture window. Radar image appears a few seconds later.
- 7. If the image is normal, close the Image Capture window.
- 8. Input each item in the Setting Area.

Setting	
Set Recording Mode Image Capture Select Equipment	Reflect Equipment Check
Active	
Brand	Furuno
Type No. (Equipment Name)	FAR-28x7
Check	Not Comp
Data Name	SXGA (60Hz)
Horizontal Resolution	1360
Vertical Resolution	1024
Horizontal Offset	159
Vertical Offset	38
PLL	1688
CDEV	1/1 💌
VCOSL	ИСОН
Phase (0-63)	0
Sync Type	Separate SYNC
Horizontal SYNC Polarity	Negative 💌
Vertical SYNC Polarity	Negative 🔻
HD/VD Sync Termination (Composite Sync)	Open 💌
Pulse Width for VD Detection (Composite Sync) (0 to 1020 step 4)	0
Interlace Type	Non-Interlace
Interlace Polarity	Positive 💌
ITRP(0 to 4092 step 4)	0
ITRW(0 to 4092 step 4)	0
Sampling Rate	15sec

Items are as follows:

Active:	Check a channel to activate it.
Brand:	Enter brand name.
Type No.:	Enter type no.
Check:	Set and activate check.
Data Name:	Enter data name.
Horizontal resolution:	Set horizontal resolution.
Vertical resolution:	Set vertical resolution.
Horizontal Offset:	Move the picture horizontally.
Vertical offset:	Move the picture vertically.
PLL:	This sets the frequency of the PLL-oscillator.
CDEV:	Set CDEV.
VCOSL:	Set VCO Signal Lead.
Phase (0-63):	Phase setting selects the phase of the sampling clock relative to phase locked loop signal, in 64 steps of 5.625 degrees. If Phase is not set correctly, any section of an image consisting of vertical lines may show line "tearing".
Sync Type:	Select the type of video sync signal.
	: Set the polarity of the horizontal sync signal.
	Set the polarity of the vertical sync signal.
HD/VD Sync Termination	n: Sets horizontal and vertical synchronization point. When
-	using a composite signal, set to 75ohms.
Pulse Width for VD Dete	ction (0-1020 Step4): Sets the pulse width for video signal
	detection.
Interlace Type:	When the video image is interlace, set "Interlace" sampling

	mode. In Interlace mode, the even pixels are sampled on one frame and odd pixels are sampled on the other frame.
Interlace Polarity:	Set interlace polarity.
ITRP (0-4092 Step4):	Enter interlace pulse position.
ITRW (0-4092 step4):	Enter interlace pulse width.
Sampling Rate:	Display sampling rate. Fixed at "15 seconds".
Compress Type (viewer)	:Set compress type (viewer).
Color Bit:	Display and set Color Bit.
Charge Pump Current:	Set chance pump current. Fixed at "0.5 mA".
Video Clock Polarity:	Set video clock polarity. Fixed at "Through".
Counter Clock Selection	Select counter clock selection. Fixed at "49 MHz".
VCO Clock Hold:	Sets VCO clock hold.
Red Gain (0-255):	Enter red gain.
Green Gain (0-255):	Enter green gain.
Blue Gain (0-255):	Enter blue gain.
Red Offset (0-255):	Enter red offset.
Green Offset (0-255):	Enter green offset.
Blue Offset (0-255):	Enter blue offset.
Black Level (0-255):	Enter black level.
Equipment Category:	Enter equipment category.
Board Name*:	Enter board name for corresponding channel.
Note*:	Enter note.

**Note**: Offset, Phase and Color Bit change with the length of the antenna cable. \*Marked Items: For easy identification of input source, enter Equipment Category, Brand, Type No., and Data Name.

#### Measurement Box

The Measurement Box is located on the left side of the Information Area. The LOW Horizontal and Vertical counter should be higher than the HIGH counter. If, reversely, the HIGH counter is higher than the LOW counter, it is possible that the SYNC Polarity settings are adjusted incorrectly.

Measurement					
Parameter	Value				
CH1 Horizontal LOW Counter	1 497				
CH1 Horizontal HIGH Counter	133				
CH1 Vertical LOW Counter	415				
CH1 Vertical HIGH Counter	5				
CH1 HD/VD Phase Counter	18				

#### Config Management

After all items have been set up, proceed to the final setting management. This can only be executed one time, after all tabs have been set up.

×

- 1. Click on VDR Config Management in the Maintenance menu. VDR Config Management Import from... Export to... Default V 7 VDR Config Status : Not Matched VDR System Config Upload VDR Config Status : OK VDR Config Date : 08/10/2008 14:00:57 Download PC VDR VDR Config Code : 6bb4a22afe36de17fd61b230b28e922f Maintenance Viewer Config DRU Saved Config VDR Config Status : OK Write VDR Config Status : OK VDR Config Date : 08/10/2008 14:00:57 VDR Config Date : 24/09/2008 10:34:01 VDR Config Code : f63e6d9060fcbf343a1aeaacf7b6d626 DRU VDR Config Code : 3b4cac1a52de4350dc54ecdc405ab2ba BackupHDD Saved Config VDR Config Status : OK VDR Config Date : 24/09/2008 10:34:01 Backup HDD VDR Config Code : 3b4cac1a52de4350dc54ecdc405ab2ba CompactFlash Saved Config VDR Config Status : -Write VDR Config Date CF VDR Config Code : -Close

- 2. Click on the **Upload** button to send all sent data to the VDR memory.
- 3. Click each individual Write button to record to DRU, Backup HDD and CF. Note: If the settings are not uploaded to the VDR, they have no effect on the unit.
- 4. Click the Close button to close the VDR Config Management Dialogue Box.

## 2.3 Serial Signal

The Serial tab sets the RS-422 signals received at the terminal board (SI01-SI08) and the junction box (SI09-SI72). This channel is not only for NMEA but also binary and ASCII data.

#### Set the Serial tab as follows:

- 1. Click the Serial tab.
- 2. Select a channel from the Information window.

FURU	Produc	t Name : VR-3000	RAP LEDs		POWER STATUS	DRU Info		-Backup HDD Inf Selected :	ormation AREA 2
System Time	: 06/10/2008	3 14:56:38	SAVE NORM	L ERROR	BATT DO		5794 MB	Size :	37575
,						0110 .	0104 110	bitte .	01010
		τ τ	<u>г</u> г г 1	r	<u>т т</u>	<u>т г к</u>			
	rial   Analog   R	adar   Audio   Dig:	ital   Hardware   JB		: System Sof	tware GPS Vessel Deli	very		
formation				Setting			0		
CH No.	Type No.	Status	Check	Set Caj	pture	Select Equipment	Reflect Equipmen	t Check	P-ser
SI01		Active	Not Comp 🔺				·		·
SI02		Active	Not Comp	Active					
SI03		Active	Not Comp	Accive			IV.		
SI04		Active	Not Comp	Brand					
SI05		Active	Not Comp				1		
SI06 SI07		Active	Not Comp	Type No. (Equip	oment Name)				
SI07		Active	Not Comp					_	
SI08 SI09		Active Active	Not Comp Not Comp	Check			Not Comp 🔻		
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					•	
SI10 SI11		Active Active	Not Comp Not Comp	Data Name					
SI12		Active	Not Comp						
SI12 SI13		Active	Not Comp	Data Type			NMEA 🔻		
SI13 SI14		Active	Not Comp					_	
SI14 SI15		Active	Not Comp	Baud rate			4800bps 🔻		
SI15 SI16		Active	Not Comp					•	
SI10 SI17		None	OK	Data Bits			8 🔻		
SI18		None	OK						
SI19		None	OK	Parity Bit			None 🔻		
SI15 SI20		None	OK	1					
SI20		None	OK	Stop Bit			1 🔻		
SI21 SI22		None	OK						
SI22 SI23		None	OK	Source Checksu	m				
SI23		None	OK						
SI25		None	OK	Time out			5sec ·	<b>→</b>	
SI26		None	OK					_	
SI27		None	OK	Equipment Cate	egory				
SI28		None	OK						
SI29		None	OK	Board Name			VR-3010		
SI30		None	OK						
SI31		None	OK	Note					
SI32		None	OK						
SI33		None	OK						
SI34		None	OK						

3. Click the **Select Equipment** button in the Setting Area.



- 4. Choose the unit that is connected to the indicated Channel and click the **OK** Button.
- 5. Adjust items as needed in the Setting Area.
- 6. After finishing the settings for one channel, click the **Set** button. **Note**: Be sure to do this before moving another channel.
- 7. Repeat steps 2-6 to set up each channel.

When running Config Management for Tab Settings:

- 1. From the Maintenance menu, click VDR Config Management and then Config.
- 2. Click the **Upload** button to record data to the VDR memory.
- 3. Click the Write button to save data to the DRU, backup HDD and CF.

The buttons in the Setting Area are as follows:

Set:	Save edited data.
Capture:	Received data shown in the serial window dialog box
Select Equipment:	Select equipment settings (saved to the database) to reflect in
	a channel.
Reflect Equipment:	Save the equipment setting data to the database.
Check:	Check all channels. OK or NG (No Good) shown in
	Information window.

Individual Item Explanation:

Active*:	Put check in check box to make channel active.
Brand:	Enter brand name.
Type No. (Equipment Na	me)*: Set type no. (equipment name)
Check*:	Do equipment check.
Data Name*:	Enter data name.
Data Type:	Enter data type.
Baud Rate:	Set baud rate (Available for SI01 to SI08).
Data Bit:	Set number of bits (Available for SI01 to SI08).
Parity Bit:	Set parity bit (Available for SI01 to SI08).
Stop Bit:	Set stop bit (Available for SI01 to SI08).
Source Checksum:	Enter checksum for GPS source.
Time out:	Set time out.
Equipment Category*:	Set equipment category.
Board Name*:	Enter board names where channels are present.
Note*:	Enter note.

\* Marked Items: For easy identification of input source, enter Equipment Category, Brand, Type No., Date and Name.

## 2.4 Analog Signal

Analog signal is input via Junction Box IF-8530 (optional for VR-3000S). Receivable signal: -10 to +10 V or 4 to 20mA.

Connect the analog signal to V and G terminals on the Junction Box. When 4 to 20 mA signal is connected, make a short circuit between the V and I input terminals with jumper wire.

The basic procedure for setting up the analog signal is as follows:

- 1. Click the Analog tab.
- 2. Select channel from the Information Area.
- 3. Set detailed information of the selected channel in the Setting Area. Refer to the following illustration to enter detailed item information.

💁 VDR Mainter				
Connection M	aintenance Too	l Help		
	• 06/10/2008	: Name : VR-3000 15:36:33	RAP LEDS	MAL ERROR DC AC DRU STATUS BATT DC AC Selected : DRU Selected : AREA 2 Size : 5794 MB Size : 37575 MB
le de	: 1 drolog lp	<u>, []</u>	ساريات	Lifetime Network System Software GPS Vessel Delivery
rm   Event   Se formation	rial Anaros Ka	dar   Audio   Digi	tai  Mardware  Jb	LITETIME   Network   System, Software   GrS   Vessel   Delivery
	T N	Ci al an	Charalt	
CH No.	Type No.	Status	Check	Set Calibration Select Equipment Reflect Equipment Check
ANO01		-0.57	OK 🔺	
AN002		-3.62	OK	Active
ANOO3 ANOO4		-3.62	OK OK	
AN004 AN005		-3.63	OK	Brand
ANOOS		-3.57	OK	
ANOOT		-3.64	OK	Type No. (Equipment Name)
ANOOS		-3.59	OK	
ANOOO		-3.56	OK	Check OK 💌
ANO10		-3.61	OK	
ANO11		-3.60	OK	Data Name
ANO12		-3.61	OK	
ANO13		-3.60	OK	Data Type
ANO14		-3.61	OK	Sampling Rate 500msec
ANO15		-3.60	OK	Sampling Nate Soumsed
ANO16		-3.58	OK	Calibration Active
AN017		None	OK	
ANO18		None	OK	Calibration Foint1 3.20
ANO19		None	OK	
AN020		None	OK	Calibration Point1 Value 3.5
AN021		None	OK	
AN022		None	OK	Calibration Point2 -10.00
AN023		None	OK	
ANO24		None	OK	Calibration Point2 Value -5.00
ANO25		None	OK	
AN026		None	OK	Engineering Value Unit v
AN027		None	OK	
AN028		None	OK	Equipment Category
AN029		None	OK	
AN030		None	OK	Board Name
AN031		None	OK	Y.L.
AN032		None	OK	Note
AN033		None	OK	
ANO34		None	OK	
• I · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			1	

 $\star$ In the factory settings, there is no preset data when the **Select Equipment** button is pressed. In the case that the setup was completed on another ship and saved using Reflect Equipment, import the data by clicking **Select Equipment** and choosing the saved data.

- 4. In the following order, calibrate the Analog signal:
  - ① Click the **Calibration** button in the Setting Area.
  - ② Enter the voltage (or current) value for Calibration Point 1, and the corresponding engineering value in the left and right boxes.
  - ③ Enter values for Calibration Point 2.
  - ④ Enter unit for the values in Engineering Value Unit.

Analog Calibration				
Channel No : ANOO1				
Input Value : RAW Current Voltage(V) + Engineering 32414 + 9.89 + 35.00				
Hold Calibration Point1 : -10 + 0				
Hold Calibration Point2 : 10 + 30				
Engineering Value Unit : deg				
New Engineering Value : 29.835				
OK Apply Cancel				

In the above image the Engineering Value Unit is set to degrees (deg). The Calibration Point 1 is -10V, corresponding to 0 degrees, Calibration Point 2 is 10V corresponding to 30 degrees. This is set corresponding to the connected analog sensor.

When the **Apply** button is clicked, the New Engineering Value of 29.835V, corresponding to the input Voltage of 9.89V, is displayed in the bottom field. Whenever the input value is changed this value also changes. Check that the New Engineering Value is within an appropriate range.

Another method is to observe the Voltage (or Current) field in the top field and press the **Hold** button of Point 1 when an appropriate value is displaying. Do this again for Point 2.

- 5 Click the **OK** Button
- 5. When setting is complete, click the **Set** button. Be sure to do this before moving another to channel.
- 6. Repeat steps 1-5 to set up all channels.

When using Config Manager with Tabs:

- 1. From the Maintenance menu, click VDR Config Management and then Config.
- 2. Click the **Upload** button to record to VDR memory.
- 3. Click the Write buttons to record to DRU, Backup HDD and CF memory.

Active:	Put check in check box to make channel active.
Brand*:	Enter brand name.
Type No.*:	Set type no. (equipment name).
Check*:	Do equipment check.
Data Name*:	Enter data name.
Data Type*:	Analog Data type (0~10V, -10~10v, 4~20mV)
Sampling Rate:	Display sampling rate.
Calibration Active:	Disable and enable analog calibration.
Calibration Point 1#:	Enter calibration point 1.
Calibration Point 1 Value	#: Enter calibration point 1 value.

The items in the Setting Area are as shown below:

Calibration Point 2#:Enter calibration point 2.Calibration Point 2 Value#:Enter calibration point 2 value.Engineering Value Unit#:Enter engineering value unit.

**Note:** For #-marked boxes, values that are set at the Analog Calibration dialog box are displayed.

Equipment Category*:	Set equipment category.
Board Name*:	Enter board names where channels are present.
Note*:	Enter note.

\* Marked Items: For easy identification of input source, enter Equipment Category, Brand, Type No., Data and Name.

## 2.5 Digital Signal

Digital signal is connected via Junction Box IF-8530 (optional for VR-3000S). The receivable signal is 10-32 V for voltage signal, or contact signal. For voltage signal, connect to A and B input terminals on the Junction Box. For contact signal, connect to B and G input terminals on the Junction Box. Also, make a short-circuit between the 24 and A input terminals with a jumper wire.

To set up the Digital tab:

- 1. Click the Digital tab.
- 2. Select a channel from the Information Area.
- 3. Set up the digital signal from the Setting Area. Refer to the following individual item explanation.

Connection M	laintenance Too	l Help		
	• 06/10/2008	t Name : VR-3000 3 15:49:56	RAP LEDS	POWER STATUS         DEV Information         Backup KUD Information           AL         ERROR         BATT         DC         AC         Selected :         DEV           Size :         Size :         STFS MB         Size :         37575 MB
arn   Event   Se	rial Analog R	adar Audio Digit	al Hardware JB	Lifetime Network System Software GPS Vessel Delivery
uformation				Setting
CH No.	Type No.	Status	Check	Set Calibration Select Equipment Reflect Equipment Check
DC001		0	OK 🔺	Set Calibration Select squipment Reffect squipment Check
DC002		0	OK	
DC003		0	OK	Active 🔽
DC004		0	OK	
DC005		0	OK	Brand
DC006		0	OK	Type No. (Equipment Name)
DC007		0	OK	Type No. (Equipment Name)
DC008 DC009		1	OK OK	Check
DC010		0	OK	
DC010 DC011		0	OK	Data Name
DC012		0	OK	
DC013		0	OK	Contact Type
DC014		0	OK	
DC015		1	OK	Sampling Rate 500msec
DC016		0	OK	
DC017		0	OK	Calibration Active
DC018		0	OK	Active Status(1)
DC019		0	OK	Active Status(I)
DC020		0	OK	Active Status(0)
BC021		0	OK	
DC022 DC023		1	OK	Equipment Category
BC023 BC024		0	OK	
BC024 BC025		0	OK	Board Name IF-8530
DC026		0	OK	
DC027		0	OK	Note
DC028		0	OK	
DC029		1	OK	
DC030		0	OK	
DC031		0	OK	
DC032		0	OK	
DC033		0	OK	
DC034		0	OX	

 $\star$ In the factory settings, there is no preset data when the **Select Equipment** button is pressed. In the case that the setup was completed on another ship and saved using Reflect Equipment, import the data by clicking **Select Equipment** and choosing the saved data.

4. When setting Digital Signal to each 64 channel group, perform the following

directions:

1. Click the **Calibration** button in the setting area.

Active	Channel	0	1
	DCOO1-DCO64	OK	NG
	DC065-DC128	OK	NG
	DC129-DC192	OK	NG
	DC193-DC256	OK	NG
	DC257-DC320	OK	NG
	DC321-DC384	OK	NG
	DC385-DC448	OK	NG
	DC449-DC512	OK	NG

- 2. Check the active column of the channel group being set.
- 3. Enter the status in columns 0 and 1 of that group.
- 4. Click the **OK** Button.
- 5. When finished setting up, click the **Set** button.
- 6. Repeat steps 2-5 to set up other channels.

When using Config Manager with Tabs

- 1. From the Maintenance menu, click VDR Config Management and then Config.
- 2. Click the **Upload** button to record to VDR memory.
- 3. Click the Write buttons to record to DRU, Backup HDD and CF memory.

The items in the Setting Area are as shown below.

Active:	Put check in check box to make channel active.
Brand*:	Enter brand name.
Type No.:	Set type no. (equipment name)
Check:	Do equipment check.
Data Name*:	Enter and display data name.
Contact Type:	Set contact type. NO: normal open, NC normal close
Sampling Rate:	Display sampling rate.
Calibration Active:	Disable and enable digital calibration.
Active Status (1)*:	Set status display when (1) is active.
Active Status (0)*:	Set status display when (0) is active.
<b>Equipment Category*</b>	: Set equipment category.
Board Name*:	Enter board names where channels are present.
Note*:	Enter note.
* Markad Hama, Fara	any identification of input course, optor Equipment Cat

\* Marked Items: For easy identification of input source, enter Equipment Category, Brand, Type No., Date and Name.

## 2.6 Audio

Microphone and VHF audio settings are performed in the Audio tab.

Set the items in the Audio tab as shown below:

#### 1. Click the Audio tab.

VDR Maintenance Viewer					
Connection Maintenance Tool Help					
System Time : 09/10/2008 13:30:55	NAL POWER STATUS NAL BATT DC AC Size : 5794 MB Size : 37575 MB				
Alarm   Event   Serial   Analog   Radar Audio   Digital   Hardware   JB					
	Setting				
CH No. Type No. MIC Test Check	Set         MIC Test         Continuous MIC Test         Select Equipment         Reflect Equipment				
2 - Not Comp					
3 VR-5011 - / - OK	Active 🔽				
4 VR-5011 - / - 0K 5 VR-5011 - / - 0K	Brand Furuno				
	Type No. (Equipment Name)				
	Check OK _				
	Data Name MIC				
	Input Type M5/M6				
	Sampling Data Bit 16bit				
	Sampling Frequency 15625Hz				
	Codec DYNAMIC64 -				
	MIC Test Active M1/M3/M5				
	MIC Test Active M2/M4/M6				
	MIC M1/M3/M5 Position				
	MIC M2/M4/M6 Position				
	Threshold Level M1/M3/M5 50				
	Threshold Level M2/M4/M6 50				
	Equipment Category audio				
	Board Name				
	Note				

- 2. Select channel from the Information Area.
- 3. Click Select Equipment in the Setting Area.



- 4. Click on the connected device in the indicated channel. The setting contents are displayed in the Information and Setting Areas.
- 5. If required, update the item contents in the Setting Area. Refer to the detailed item explanation below.
- After completing settings for a channel, click the Set button.
   Note: Be sure to click the Set button before moving to another channel.
- 7. Repeat steps 2-6 to set up other channels.

When using Config Manager with tabs

- 1 From the Maintenance menu, click VDR Config Management and then Config.
- 2 Click the **Upload** button to record to VDR memory.
- 3 Click the Write buttons to record to DRU, Backup HDD and CF memory.

#### MIC test

Do the MIC test to check whether audio is received clearly in adequate level or not.

1. Click the **MIC TEST** button in the Setting Area.

2. Click the **TEST** button in the MIC Test dialogue box. MIC test results are displayed in the MIC Test dialogue box.

MICTest			×		
	12/12/20	08 16:32:39			
MIC No. A	Threshold	Value	Result		
M1	50	637	OK		
M2	50	0	None		
M3	50	515	OK		
M4	50	0	None		
M5	50	499	OK		
M6	50	0	None		
Test Close					

3. Click the **Close** button to close the dialogue box.

**Note**: Not the same recording/playback function as the previous Web Configurator software.

#### Continuous MIC Test

Run the continuous MIC test as needed accordingly.

- 1. Click the **Continuous MIC Test** button in the Setting Area
- 2. Set up how many times to perform in the Continuous MIC Test dialogue box and click the **Test** button.

Test Count	: 5		(1-99)				
Level	50	50	50	50	50	50	
Count T	M1	M2	M3	M4	M5	M6	
5	oĸ	None	oĸ	None	oĸ	None	
4	OK	None	OK	None	OK	None	
3	OK	None	OK	None	OK	None	
2	OK	None	OK	None	OK	None	
1	OK	None	OK	None	OK	None	
	412						
Max Min	666		545	-	515	-	_

3. Click the **Close** button to close the dialogue box.

The buttons in the Setting Area work as follows:

	Ing Area work as follows.					
Active:	Put check in check box to make channel active.					
Brand*:	Enter and display brand name.					
Type No.*:	Set type no. (equipment name)					
Check*:	Do equipment check.					
Data Name*:	Enter data name.					
Input Type:	Enter input type.					
Sampling Data Bit:	Displays sampling data bit rate.					
Sampling Frequency:	: Displays Sampling Frequency.					
Codec:	Sets MIC type					
<b>MIC Test Active M1/M3/M5:</b> Put a checkmark when performing MIC Test of M1/M3/M5.						
<b>MIS Test Active M2/M4/M6:</b> Put a checkmark when performing MIC Test of M2/M4/M6.						
MIC M1/M3/M5 Positie	MIC M1/M3/M5 Position: Enter MIC position of MIC M1/M3/M5.					
MIC M2/M4/M6 Position: Enter MIC position of MIC M2/M43/M6.						
Threshold Level M1/M	M3/M5: Enter MIC test threshold level of MIC M1/M3/M5.					
Threshold Level M2/M	Threshold Level M2/M4/M6: Enter MIC test threshold level of MIC M2/M43/M6.					
Equipment Category	*: Set equipment category.					
Board Name*:	Enter board names where channels are present.					
Note*:	Enter note.					
* Marked Items: For easy identification of input source, enter Equipment Category, Brand,						

\* Marked Items: For easy identification of input source, enter Equipment Category, Brand, Type No., Date and Name.

## 2.7 Alarm

Alarm and Alarm Status settings are found in the Alarm tab.

America Wallitemance Fiol	H:Lp					
	NET I MIS	PIMER STATUS DBW Enformation	"Tacku, IDD Information			
FURUNO Ired		Selected DOT	Salverad ARE 2			
System line : 09/10/20	CE 15 50:51 SAM	ERSON BATT DU DU Signa ( 5704 UR	Sire 37575 VB			
			310 310 516			
dam Event Exrial Analog	Radar Audio D.s.t. Hardvars JB Lite	tane Betwork System Soctrare GtS Versel Leisverv				
Alarn Fistory				Sester		
000 Mw						
Tin + ⊤	Caregory	Yana	Nralar	Statix		
5/LD/2005 .8.DC.4T.809	A3 ern	Sarial DZCH Ne Connection	302	Commenza (ACN d-De)		
.3/10/2003 (11:55:57:509 53.4 546665 (7:55:57:50)	Al arm	Spenal Leff Ne Connection	312	Cogarrenzo		
371 7/2003 171-521-561-500	Alam	Serial D4CH No Contraction	304	Commente (ACR debe)		
D/LD/2000 17100106-000	A) ann	Secial XCH Ne Connection	000	Countenies (ACR date)		
3/1 (2003 11 52 24 910	Alam	Nettia Dibli No Contracto en	313	L'ommenne -		
3/LD/2003 .7:53:32:909	Al ern	Sarial D4CH NA Connection	304	Colourrien za		
3/LU/2003 (11:55:52:508	Al arm	Sama JUCH No Connecta ma	303	be aprese T		
3/10/2003 (7.53.19.008	Al arn	Serial DOM No Connection		Fecover		
D/LD/2000 (7:00:10:500	Alaun Alaun	Serial DECH No Competium Serial DECH No Connectium	002 304	Fecuves Commence (ACR date)		
3/10/2003 17 20 42 613						
3/LD/2003 .7:20:42:8J2	A3 sam	Savi L DECH Ne Commection.	306	Cocarrence (ACK d-ne) Locarrence (AUK d-ne)		
15/10/2005 111201420512	Alarn Alarn		Serie John Releancetion 305			
3/10/2003 (7:20:42:812 0/10/2000 (7:20:42:012	Alwn	Serial W7CH Ne Connection	3(7	Cochrence (ACK d-ne) Cochrence (ACK d-ne)		
10/10/2000 11/201423012 10/10/2000 17 PC 48 C11	Alam	Sarial DECH Re Convertion Serial DECH Re Convertion	200	Contractor (wCR date)		
3/LD/2003 .7:20:42:8J.	Alarn	Saria LICH Ne Concetion	3.1	Commence (ACK dame)		
.3/LJ/2003 (11:20:42:61)	Nam	Saria, ILUH Ne Concetion	310	Le carrenza (AUK dene)		
13/10/2003 (7:20:42:81) 13/10/2003 (7:20:42:81)	N arn	Savia ICCH Ne Connection Savia ICCH Ne Connection	3:8	Commenzo (ACR d-ne)		
D/LD/2000 .7:20:42:010	Alsun	Serial LCCH No Composition	3.0	Courrence (ACR date)		
13/11/2003 17 20 42 610	Alam	Serial 150M No Connection	3:5	Commence (aCR dune)		
-01 (2003 - 21 -02 - 20 -3/1 1/2003 - 7:20-42:510	Alarn Alarn	Sarria Lating Concertion	34	Ferryranna (AFR dana)		
171172003 (*):20:42:009	Alwn	Sieria, IECH N. Com.retrum	016	Courrence (AUS date)		
.3/13/2003 (*):20142:000	Alam	Serial AUR No Connection	319	Uccurrence "AUK d-ne)		
:5/10/2005 : 120:42:009	Al sun	Serial 2011 No Consection	305	Courrence (ACK done)		
13/10/2003 17 15 17 919	Alorn	Serie' MCH Nr Contration	302	Courrenze		
(5/LD/2005 .T.11.LT.5J6	Alern	Sarial DICH No Contection	305	Cogarrenza		
3/LU/2003 (1111):16:509	Nan	Saria, JeUR Ne Connection	315	Co carrenzo		
3/10/2003 17:15:15:018	Alam	Sarial FCH Ne Contection	305	Courtence		
D/LD/2000 :7:15::4:C17	A3 au	Secial 370H Re Connection	307	Countering		
\$/1.(2005.11.15.15.91N	Alam	Nerta BUB Ne Contectua	318	L'ocurrence		
3/10/2003 .7:17:.2:938	Alvan	Saria, LICH Ne Connection	3.1	Cocarrenza		
3/LJ/2008 (1:11:12:41)	Alurn	Sava LUCH Ne Connecta m	310	L'a gany on as		
13/10/2003 (7.15.10.010	éd arn	Serial LCCH No Connection	3:8	Cocarrenze		

The Alarm tab shows the following information about alarms. Click the Time, Category and Name tabs in the title bar to sort.

Time of alarm
Alarm category
Name of alarm
Alarm number
Alarm status

#### Alarm Search

1. Click the **Search** button above the Alarm tab. The Search dialogue box appears.

Search	×
🕞 Search Condition	
	DD/MM/YYYY HH:MM:SS
🔲 Start Time	08 · / 10 · / 2008 · 13 · : 55 · : 49 ·
🗖 End Time	09+ / 10+ / 2008+ 13+ : 55+ : 49+
🗌 Name	
🗌 Number	
🗖 Status	
	Search Close

2. Add a checkmark to any desired search items (multiple items can be selected).

Start Time: Display name of alarms generated after a certain time.End Time: Display name of alarms generated before a certain time.

**Name:** Display information for alarm name entered.

**Number:** Display information for alarm number entered.

**Status:** Display alarm status for alarm name entered.

3. In the checked items column, input the desired search items.

4. Click the **Search** Button.

Close the Search box to cancel a search.

**Note**: During a search, the upper left Mode changes from Play to Search, and Display search related information.

## 2.8 Event

Click the items shown below to sort by item selected.

Time:	Time an event occurred.
Category:	Category of an event.
Name:	Name of an event.
Contents1:	Display data associated with log.
Contents2:	Display data associated with log.

#### Event Search

Do the following to search events:

1. Click the **Search** button on the upper right of the Event tab.

Search	×
- Search Condition	
	DD/MM/YYYY HH:MM:SS
🔲 Start Time	08 / 10 / 2008 13 : 55 : 49 :
🔲 End Time	09÷ / 10÷ / 2008÷ 13÷ : 55÷ : 49÷
🗖 Name	
🗌 Number	
🗖 Status	
	Search Close

2. In the dialogue box, add a checkmark to desired search items. Multiple items can be checked.

Start Time:Display name of event generated after a certain time.End Time:Display name of event generated before a certain time.Name:Display event names entered.Number:Display event numbers entered.Status:Display event status entered.

Enter information about the checked event to search in the character input box.

3. Click the **Search** button.

Note: The mode changes from Play to Search when performing a search.

## 2.9 Hardware

The Hardware tab provides information about the system hardware.

1	Setting	
	Set	
	Self Check Status	OK
	СРИ	Mobile Genuine Intel(R) processor 1800MHz
	Memory Size	424MB
	CPU Board	ок
	Audio Board	ок
	Serial Board	ок
	Radar Interface Board	ок
	Note	
1		

The buttons in the Setting window work as follows:

Self Check Status:	Display status of self check.
CPU:	Display information about the CPU.
Memory Size:	Display memory size.
CPU Board:	Display status of CPU board.
Audio Board:	Display status of Audio board.
Serial Board:	Display status of Serial board.
Radar Interface Board:	Display status of Radar Interface board.
Note*:	Enter and display note.

\* Marked items are optional.

## 2.10 JB

The JB tab functions to set up the Junction Box.

The basic procedure for setting up the Junction Box is as follows:

- 1. Click the JB tab.
- 2. Select a Junction Box from the Information Area.

	🚳 VDR Maintenance Viewer									
1	Connection Maint	enance Tool H	elp							
		Product : 09/10/2008		RAP LEDS	IAL	POWER STATUS	AC DRU Information Selected : Size :	DRV Sei	ickup HDD I: lected : ze :	nformation AREA 2 37575 MB
I	Alarm Event Ser	rial Analog Rad	lar Audio Digit	al Hardware JB	Lifetime Ne	twork System Software	GPS Vessel Delivery			
Ш	Information				Setting					
I	JB No.	IP Address	Status	Check	Set	Check				
Ш	1	172.31.24.10	OK	Not Comp		CHECK				
Ш	2	*	None	Not Comp						
Ш	3	*	None	Not Comp	Active		<b>∀</b>			
Ш	4	*	None	Not Comp	No		1			
Ш	5	*	None	Not Comp	Mo		1			
Ш	6	*	None	Not Comp Not Comp	IP Addres	5	172.31.2	4.10		
Ш	8	*	None	Not Comp						
I	Ť	-		and comp	MAC Addre	55	00:D0:11	:01:1B:A9		
					Check		Not Com	p 💌		
					Note					

- 3. Set up the Junction Box from the Setting Area.
- 4. Click the **Set** button. (Be sure to do this before moving to another channel).
- 5. Click the **Check** button to perform an inspection on all channels. In the Information Area check column, either OK or NG (No Good) is displayed.

When using Config Manager with Tabs

- 1. From the Maintenance menu, click VDR Config Management and then Config.
- 2. Click the Upload button to record to VDR memory.
- 3. Click the Write buttons to record to DRU, Backup HDD and CF.

#### The items in the Setting window work as follows:

Active:	Put check in check box to make channel active.
No:	Display Junction Box number.
IP Address:	Display IP address of Junction Box, acquired by VDR.
MAC Address:	Display MAC address of Junction Box, acquired by VDR.
Check:	Enable and disable equipment check.
Note*:	Enter note.

\*Marked items are optional

## 2.11 Life Time

The Life Time tab controls consumable parts.

The basic procedure for using the Life Time tab is as follows:

- 1. Click the Life Time tab.
- 2. Select a Type No. in the Information Area.
- 3. Set up the chosen part from Setting Area.

VDR Maintenance View	er			
onnection Maintenance	e Tool Help			
FURUN System Time : 06/	▶ Product Name : VR- 10/2008 16:04:0		POWER STATUS POWER STATUS BATT DC AC Selected : DF Size : 5	Backup HDD Information Selected : AREA 2 Size : 37575 M
Alarm Event Serial	Analog Radar Audio	Digital Hardware JB	ifetime Network System Software GPS Vessel Delivery	
Information			Setting	
Type No.	Status	Replace Date	Set	
0P24-12	OK	01/06/2012 00:00:00	Sec	
DK-120	OK	01/06/2014 00:00:00		
VR-3011	OK	01/06/2010 00:00:00	Type No. (Equipment Name)	
DC power fan	OK	01/06/2014 00:00:00		
DCV chassis fan	OK	01/06/2014 00:00:00	Data Name	
DCV CPV fan	OK	01/06/2014 00:00:00		
CMOS battery	OK	01/06/2014 00:00:00	Level	Legal Exchange Parts 💌
AC power supply	OK	01/06/2014 00:00:00		
VR-5020	OK	01/06/2018 00:00:00	Replace Date(dd/MM/yyyy HH:mm:ss)	
	None		Replace Date(dd/mm/yyyy JJL.mm:SS)	
	None		and the second se	
	None		Lifetime term	-
	None			
	None		Note	
	None			

4. Click the **Set** button.

Note: Be sure to click the Set button before moving to set up a different Type.

The items in the Setting window work as follows:

Type No.*:	Enter and display type no.
Data Name*:	Enter and display data name.
Level*:	Set replacement level. Legal Exchange Parts or Normal Exchange Parts.
Replace Date:	Enter and display recommended day of replacement.
Lifetime Term:	Not used.
Note*:	Enter and display note.

The Status column of the Information Area displays as follows:

OK:	The recommended date of replacement shown in the Replace Date
	box in the Information window has not passed.

- Out of Date: The date of replacement has passed.
- **None**: The date of replacement has not been set.

## 2.12 Network

The Network tab sets the system network.

The basic procedure for setting up the system network is as follows:

- 1. Click the Network tab.
- 2. Select a port from the Information Area.
- 3. Set up the network from the Setting Area.

۷	DR Maintenanc	e Viewer				
Con	nection Maint	tenance Tool He	elp			
•		• 06/10/2008		RAP LEDS	Sele	Information Cted : DRU : 5794 MB Size : 37575 N
Al	arm Event Se	rial Analog Rad	lar   Audio   Digit	al   Hardware   JB	Lifetime Network System Software GPS Vessel	Delivery
In	formation				Setting	
	No.	IP Address	LAN Type	Status	Set	
	eth1	10.0.0.100	PUBLIC LAN	OK		
ll	eth2	172. 31. 24. 1	JB LAN	OK	LAN Type	PUBLIC LAN 🔻
					MAC Address IP Address	
					Subnet Mask	255 0 0 0
					Gateway Address	
					Multicast Address(Only PUBLIC LAN)	239 255 0 1
					Note	

5. Click the **Set** button.

#### Note: Be sure to click the Set button before moving to set up a different Port.

The items in the Setting window work as follows:

LAN Type:	Enter LAN type; Public LAN or JB LAN.
MAC Address:	Enter MAC address.
IP Address:	Enter IP address.
Subnet Mask:	Enter subnet mask.
Gateway Address	*: Enter gateway address
Live Play Multicas	st Mode (Only JB LAN): Check box to enable live player multicast
	mode.

Multicast Address (Only Public LAN): Enter and display live player multicast address.Note\*:Enter note.

\* Marked items are optional.

## 2.13 System

The System tab sets system related functions.

The basic procedure for using the System tab is as follows:

1. Click the System tab.

ſ	Setting	
	Set	
	VDR Type	VR-3000
	VDR Model	VDR 💌
	Radar Interface Check	OK 💌
	Junction Box Count	1
	DRV Flash Count	1 💌
	DRU Capacity (MB)	5794
	Backup HDD Capacity(MB)	37575
	VDR Config Version	02.01
	VDR Config Date	08/10/2008 14:00:57
	VDR Config Code	6bb4a22afe36de17fd61b230b28e922f
	Installation Engineer	
	Installation Company	
	Installation Date	
	MIC Test Time	00:00 and 12:00 V
	Note	

- 2. Set up the chosen item from the Setting Area.
- 3. Click the Set button.

Note: Be sure to click the Set button before moving to a different tab.

The items in the Setting window work as follows:

VDR Type:	Enter type of VDR.
VDR Model:	Enter model number of VDR.
Radar Interface Check:	Enable and disable checking of the Radar Interface board.
Junction Box Count:	Enter number of junction boxes in system.
DRU Flash Count:	Enter number of DRU flash disks in system.
DRU Capacity:	Display capacity of DRU.
Backup HDD Capacity:	Display capacity of backup HDD.
VDR Config Version:	Display version no. of VDR.
VDR Config Date:	Display the number of hours the VDR settings have
	been saved.
VDR Config Code:	Display configuration identity code.
Installation Engineer:	Enter name of the equipment installer.
Installation Company:	Enter name of installer's company.

Installation Date: MIC Test Time: Note\*: Enter the date of the installation. Enter the date of the MIC test. Enter note.

\*Marked items are optional

## 2.14 Software

The Software tab sets and display software-related operations.

The basic procedure for using the Software tab is as follows:

- 1. Click the Software tab.
- 2. Set up the chosen Item from the Setting Area.

Lifetime Network System Software GPS Vessel Delivery	
Setting	
Set	
VDR System Program	2450031-02.19
Process Version	02.19
Power Distribution Unit (PDU)	2450028-01.01
Operation System	2.4.25-elinos-72
Audio Driver	01.01
RAP Version	2450026-01.03
AP Version	2450026-01.02
JB1:RJB Boot Program	01.01
JB1:RJB App Program	01.04
JB2:RJB Boot Program	*
JB2:RJB App Program	*
JB3:RJB Boot Program	*
JB3:RJB App Program	*
JB4:RJB Boot Program	*
JB4:RJB App Program	*
JB5:RJB Boot Program	*
JB5:RJB App Program	*
JB6:RJB Boot Program	*
JB6:RJB App Program	*
JB7:RJB Boot Program	*
······································	

3. Click the **Set** button.

The items in the Setting window work as follows:

The items in the beamy window work as follows.		
VDR System Program:	Display the VDR system program no.	
Process Version:	Display the process version.	
<b>Power Distribution Unit</b>	(PDU): Display the version no. of the PDU.	
Operation System:	Display the version no. of the OS.	
Audio Driver:	Display the version no. of the audio driver.	
RAP Version:	Enter the version no. of the RAP.	
AP Version:	Enter the version no. of the AP.	
JB1-8 Boot Program:	Display the no. of the RJB Boot program for Junction Boxes 1 to 8.	
JB1-8 App Program:	Display the no. of the RJB App program for Junction Boxes 1 to 8.	
Watch Dog Interval:	Enter the process response time. A process is repeated if there is no response within the time interval set here.	
Giveup Interval:	Enter the restart watch time. The restarting of a process is stopped when the number of times it has been restarted is exceeded within the interval set here.	
Refork Limit:	Enter the upper limit for process restart. The restarting of a process is stopped when the number of times it has been restarted exceeds the Giveup Interval.	
Note*:	Enter note.	

\*Marked Items are optional

## 2.15 GPS

The GPS tab sets GPS-related parameters.

The basic procedure for using the GPS tab is as follows:

- 1. Click the GPS tab.
- 2. Set up the chosen channel from the Information window.
- 3. Set up the chosen item in the Setting Area.

Set       Check         Priority       1st GPS         Date and Time Source / Ship Position Source (Serial Channel No.)       1         Check       Not Comp ▼         GPS Antenna Position from Bow       0         GPS Antenna Position from Stern       0         GPS Antenna Position from Stern       0
Date and Time Source / Ship Position Source (Serial Channel No.)       1         Check       Not Comp ▼         GPS Antenna Position from Bow       0         GPS Antenna Position from Stern       0
Check Not Comp GPS Antenna Position from Bow 0 GPS Antenna Position from Stern 0
GPS Antenna Position from Bow  GPS Antenna Position from Stern
GPS Antenna Position from Stern
GPS Antenna Position from Starboard
GPS Antenna Position from Port
GPS Failure Threshold 10
GPS Delay Time By Time Sync
GPS Difference Interval
GPS Sync Giveup Time 60
Note

- 4. Click the Set button.
- 4. Repeat steps 2-4 to set up each Channel.
- 5. Click the **Check** button to perform an inspection on all channels. In the Information Area check column, either OK or NG (No Good) is displayed.

The items in the Setting window work as follows:

Priority:	Display priority order.
Date and Time/Ship Position Sourc	e: Set GPS source channel (serial channel number
	for ZDA sentence)
Check*:	Enable and disable checking.
GPS Antenna Position From Bow:	Enter position of GPS antenna from bow.
<b>GPS Antenna Position From Stern:</b>	Enter position of GPS antenna from stern.
GPS Antenna Position From Port:	Enter position of GPS antenna from port.
GPS Antenna Position From Starbo	pard: Enter position of GPS antenna from starboard.
GPS Failure Threshold:	If the ZDA is input within the set time limit,
	the system restarts synchronized. If not
	input within the time limit, the system restarts

	without synchronization.
GPS Delay Time by Time Sync:	Enter minimum time delay for time
	synchronization. Time synchronization is started
	only in the time set here.
GPS Difference Interval:	The time set here is added to the GPS time to
	synchronize the system time.
GPS Sync Giveup Time:	If the system receives the GPS time within the
	time set, the system synchronizes with the time.
	When not receiving a signal, the system displays
	an "error 26" message.
Note*:	Enter and display note.

\*Marked Items are optional.

## 2.16 Vessel

The Vessel tab sets and displays own ship's information, such as name and IMO number.

The basic procedure for using the Vessel tab is as follows:

- 1. Click the Vessel tab.
- 2. Set up information in the Setting window.

Setting Set	
Vessel Name	
Vessel IMO Number	
Vessel MMSI Number	
Vessel Flag	
Approval of Authority	
Note	

- 3. Click the **Set** button. (Be sure to do this before moving to another port.)
- 4. From the Maintenance menu, click VDR Config Management and then Config.
- 5. Click the Write buttons to save data to the DRU, backup HDD, CF.

The buttons in the Setting window works as follows:

Vessel Name:	Enter name of vessel.
Vessel IMO Number:	Enter IMO number of vessel.
Vessel Flag:	Enter flag of vessel.
Approval of Authority:	Enter name of approving authority.
Note*:	Enter note.

\*Marked items are optional.
# 2.17 Delivery

The Delivery tab sets the data fed to other PC's, etc., via the Ethernet.

The basic procedure for using the Delivery tab is as follows:

- 1. Click the Delivery tab.
- 2. Click the **Add** button to show the Delivery Config window.



- 3. Select protocol from the Protocol drop-down box (Unicast or Multicast).
- 4. Enter IP address in the IP address input box.
- 5. Enter port number in the port number input box.
- 6. Click the tab of the data to send. (Analog, Digital or Serial)
- 7. Select the channel of the data to send.
- 8. If Serial was selected at step 6, select applicable data sentence from the Inactive window. Click the right arrow to move the data sentence to the Active window.
- 9. Click the **OK** button to close the Delivery Config window
- 10. The settings are listed in a table in the Delivery window. Check the checkbox in the Active column, and then click the **Set** button.

The buttons in the Setting window works as follows:

- **Set:** Save edited settings.
- Add: Create new delivery settings.
- Modify: Modify selected delivery settings.
- **Delete:** Delete selected delivery settings.

# 3. How to Back up Configuration Data

This chapter shows how to back up configuration data to various storage media. Configuration data can be opened with Word Pad or any text editor other than Notepad.

# 3.1 How to Back up Configuration Data to the Startup Compact Flash (CF)

Back up data to the startup CF after setting the VDR. Configuration data is created on the CF as a config.ini file.

Do the following to back up data to a CF:

- 1. Set up parameters on the tabs, referring to Chapter 2.
- 2. Click the Maintenance menu.
- 3. Select VDR Config Management.

VDR Config Management	X
Import from Export to	Default
Upload       FC       Maintenance Viewer Config       VDR Config Status : 0K       VDR Config Date : 08/10/2008 14:00:57       VDR Config Code : 663e6d9060fcbf343alaeaacf7b6d626	VDR Config Status : Not Matched VDR System Config VDR Config Status : OK VDR Config Date : O8/10/2008 14:00:57 VDR Config Code : 6bb4a22afe36de17fd81b230b28e922f DRV Saved Config VDR Config Status : OK VDR Config Status : OK VDR Config Code : 3b4cac1a52de4350dc54ecdc405ab2ba
 ₩rite	BackupHDD Saved Config VDR Config Status : OK VDR Config Date : 24/09/2008 10:34:01 VDR Config Code : 3b4cacla52de4350dc54ecdc405ab2ba CompactFlash Saved Config VDR Config Status : - VDR Config Date : - VDR Config Code : -
	Close

- 4. Click the **Upload** button.
- 5. A confirmation box appears; click the **OK** button to start uploading to the VDR.
- 6. Click the **Write** button where the arrow connects between VDR and DRU, backup HDD.
- 7. A confirmation window appears; click the **OK** button to save the configuration data to the DRU, and backup HDD.
- 8. Click the Write button where the arrow connects between the VDR and CF.
- 9. A confirmation window appears; click the **OK** button to save the configuration data to the startup CF.
- 10. Check that the PC, VDR, DRU, backup HDD and CF share the same VDR config code.

## **3.2 How to Back up Configuration Data to a PC**

Configuration data saved to the PC can be edited with Wordpad and shared with other vessels. For future service ease, it is recommended to backup configuration data to the PC and have the data on board the vessel. Also, it is recommended to upload this data to Furuno SMS (Service Management System). If unable to upload to Furuno SMS, please contact the Service Center, Furuno, Japan.

To back up configuration data to the PC do as follows:

- 1. Set up parameters on the tabs, referring to Chapter 2.
- 2. Click the Maintenance menu.
- 3. Select VDR Config Management.
- 4. Click the **Export to** button.



- 5. A confirmation window appears; click the **OK** button.
- 6. Select where to save the data, enter file name, then click the **Open** button.
- 7. Confirm that back up file is in the location selected.

# 4. How to Upload Configuration Data from a PC

The procedure below shows how to upload configuration from the PC to a VR-3000/VR-3000S.

- 1. Click the Maintenance menu.
- 2. Select VDR Config Management.



- 3. Click the **Import from** button.
- 4. The Open window appears. Select configuration data, and then click the **Open** button.
- 5. Click the Upload button to upload data to the VR-3000/VR-3000S.
- 6. Click the Write buttons to save data to the DRU, backup HDD, and CF.

# 5. Media Management

The media management feature deletes data from recording media; initialization the system, etc.

# 5.1 Initialization

This section shows how to delete data from the recording media. Configuration data is not deleted. After performing the software configuration, delete the data from the DRU, and HDD.

Do the following to delete data from the DRU (LAN connection):

- 1. Set the Playback/CPU switch in the DCU to the CPU position.
- Use an Ethernet cross cable to connect the PC to J14 (DATA) in the DCU (See page 4).
- 3. Open the Tool menu.
- 4. Select Media Management to open the VDR Media Management window.

🍐 VDR Media I	Managemer	nt			×
VDR Media Table					
• Direct					
C LAN Connect	to TR : 10	0 0	100		
Connect		10101	100		
					Analyze
Select	Device	Capacity	Name	Information	
Operation					
Operation	DRU Creatio	on	<b>T</b>		
Recording Area	All Area	<b>V</b>			
Vessel Name					
Password					
			Run		
					Close

- 5. Check that IP address shown in the "LAN Connect to IP" in VDR Media Table Area is the same as the IP address access point.
- 6. Select "LAN Connect to IP" in the VDR Media Table column.
- 7. Click the **Analyze** button. A list of recording media connected to the VDR appears.

DR Media T O Direct	ia Management able mect to IP : 10	0 0	100	Analyze
Select	Device /dev/scsi/host	Capacity	Name Restance VIII I	Information
	/dev/scsi/host		Backup HDD: DRU:	Area1 Saved:Area2 Recording:Area3 no data:Area4 no data: DRU ≪2008/09/02 05:24:06:000≻1/1

8. Put a checkmark in the checkbox of the Select column for the DRU in the Name column.

Note: If there are several flash memories in the DRU, all flash memories are shown. Check all flash memories shown.

9. Select "DRU Initialize" from the Operation dropdown list in the Operation area.

Operation		DRU Creation:
Operation	DRV Initialize 🔽	This mode is to make a new DRU for VR-3000/S V2.xx. This mode is to delete all data (Operation History, recording data, VDR
Recording Area	All Area	configuration data) and so you should backup operating history and VDR configuration data)
Vessel Name		DRU Initialize:
Password		This mode is to delete DRV recording data for VR-3000/S V2.xx.
		BackupHDD Creation:
	Run	This mode is to make a new backupHDD for VR-3000/S V2.xx
		You use this mode for VR-3000/S V2.xx with 9GB memory capacity DRU. 📃 🔳
		Close

10. Click the **Run** button.

Do the following to delete data from the DRU (Direct connection):

- 1. Connect an IEEEE1394 cable between J6 on the DCU and the PC.
- 2. Set the Playback/CPU switch in the DCU to the Playback position.
- 3. Open the Tool menu.
- 4. Select Media Management to show the VDR Media Management window.
- 5. Select Direct in the VDR Media Table column.
- 6. Click the Analyze button. A list of recording media connected to the VDR appears.
- 7. Put a checkmark in the checkbox of the Select column for the DRU in the Name column.

**Note:** If there are several flash memories in the DRU, all flash memories are shown. Check all flash memories shown.

- 8. Select "DRU Initialize" from the Operation dropdown list in the Operation area.
- 9. Enter password in the password column.
- 10. Click the **RUN** button.

#### Delete data from the backup HDD as follows (LAN connection):

- 1. Set the Playback/CPU switch in the DCU to the CPU position.
- 2. Check that an Ethernet cross cable is connected between J14 in the DCU and the PC.
- 3. Open the Tool menu.
- 4. Select Media Management to open the VDR Media Management window.
- 5. Check that IP address shown in the LAN Connect to IP in VDR Media Table Area is the same as the IP address access point.
- 6. Select LAN Connect to IP in the VDR Media Table column.
- 7. Click the **Analyze** button.
- 8. A list of recording media connected to the VDR appears.
- 9. Put a checkmark in the box of the Select column for the Backup HDD in the Name column. Select "Backup HDD Initialize" from the Operation dropdown list in the Operation area.
- 10.Click the Run button.

#### Delete data from the backup HDD as follows (Direct connection):

- 1. Connect an IEEE1394 cable between J6 on the DCU and the PC.
- 2. Set the Playback/CPU switch in the DCU to the Playback position.
- 3. Open the Tool menu.
- 4. Select Media Management to open the VDR Media Management window.
- 5. Select Direct in the VDR Media Table window.
- 6. Click the Analyze button. A list of recording media connected to the VDR appears.
- 7. Put a checkmark in the check box of the Select column for the Backup HDD in the Name column. Select "Backup HDD Initialize" from the Operation dropdown list in the Operation area.
- 8. Enter password.
- 9. Click the Run button.

# 5.2 Creation

The Creation feature initializes recording media.

Note: This feature deletes ALL configuration data. Be absolutely sure that is ok to delete all configuration data.

#### Initialize the DRU as follows (LAN connection):

- 1. Set the Playback/CPU switch in the DCU to the CPU position.
- 2. Check that an Ethernet cross cable is connected between J14 in the DCU and the PC.
- 3. Open the Tool menu.
- 4. Select Media Management to open the VDR Media Management window.
- 5. Check that IP address shown in the LAN Connect to IP in VDR Media Table Area is the same as the IP address access point.
- 6. Check "LAN Connect to IP" in the VDR Media Table column.
- 7. Click the **Analyze** button. A list of recording media connected to the VDR appears.
- 8. Put a checkmark in the box of the Select column for the DRU in the Name column. Select "DRU Creation" from the Operation dropdown list in the Operation area.
- 9. Click the **Run** button.

#### Initialize the Backup HDD as follows (LAN connection):

1. To format the Backup HDD, place a checkmark in the Select column of the listed record media in the Name column of the VDR Media Management dialogue box.

2. From the Operation drop down list of the Operation area, select "Backup HDD Creation (Radar) or "Backup HDD Creation".

Note: The Backup HDD format method differs with 6GB and 9 GB DRU.

- Use "Backup HDD Creation (Radar) with 6GB.
- Use "Backup HDD Creation" with 9GB.
- 3. Press the Run Button.

#### Initialize the DRU as follows (Direct connection):

- 1. Connect an IEEE1394 cable between J6 on the DCU and the PC.
- 2. Set the Playback/CPU switch in the DCU to the Playback position.
- 3. Open the Tool menu.
- 4. Select Media Management to open the VDR Media Management window.
- 5. Select Direct in the VDR Media Table window.
- 6. Click the **Analyze** button. A list of recording media connected to the VDR appears.
- 7. Put a checkmark in the box of the Select column for the DRU and the desired recording media in the Name column.

In the Operation dropdown list of the Operation area, select "DRU Creation".

- 8. Enter password in the password column.
- 9. Click the Run button.

Initialize the Backup HDD as follows (Direct Connection):

1. To format the Backup HDD, place a checkmark in the Select column of the listed record media in the Name column of the VDR Media Management dialogue box.

2. From the Operation column of the Operation area, select "Backup HDD Creation (Radar) or "Backup HDD Creation".

Note: The Backup HDD format method differs with 6GB and 9 GB DRU.

- Use "Backup HDD Creation (Radar) with 6GB.
- Use "Backup HDD Creation" with 9GB.
- 3. Enter the password in the Password column.
- 4. Press the Run Button.

## 5.3 How to Enable Recording Area on the Backup HDD

This function enables writing over a recording area.

#### Recording enable (LAN connection):

- 1. Set the Playback/CPU switch in the DCU to the CPU position.
- 2. Check that an Ethernet cross cable is connected between J14 in the DCU and the PC.
- 3. Open the Tool menu.
- 4. Select Media Management to open the VDR Media Management window.
- 5. Check that IP address shown in the "LAN Connect to IP" in VDR Media Table Area is the same as the IP address access point.
- 6. Select "LAN Connect to IP" in the VDR Media Table column.
- 7. Click the Analyze button. A list of recording media connected to the VDR appears.
- 8. Put a checkmark in the box of the Select column for the Backup HDD in the Name column.
- 9. Select "Backup HDD Recording Area Enable" from the Operation dropdown list in the Operation area.
- 10.Click the **Run** button.

#### Recording enable (Direct connection):

- 1. Connect an IEEE1394 cable between J6 on the DCU and the PC.
- 2. Set the Playback/CPU switch in the DCU to the Playback position.
- 3. Open the Tool menu.
- 4. Select Media Management to open the VDR Media Management window.
- 5. Select Direct in the VDR Media Table window.
- 6. Click the **Analyze** button. A list of recording media connected to the VDR appears.
- 7. Put a checkmark in the box of the Select column for the Backup HDD in the Name column.
- 8. Select "Backup HDD Recording Area Enable" from the Operation dropdown list in the Operation area.
- 9. Enter password.
- 10. Click the Run button.

# 6. Other Functions

## 6.1 Software Management

The software download feature downloads VDR system software to the PC.

To download software:

- 1. Click the Maintenance menu.
- 2. From the Software Management menu, click Software Download to show the Software Download window.

Softwar	e Download	×
-Update S	erver	
IPAddres	s : 10 0 0	100
	Download Software	Close

- 3. Enter the IP address 10.0.0.100 in the IP address box in the Update Server area.
- 4. Click the **Download Software** button.
- 5. The confirmation window appears; click the **OK** button.

The Software Backup Execute window shows the results of the download. Software is downloaded to C:\Program Files\VDR\VDR\Viewer\Viewer\Backup. The software file name is vdr.tar.

To Upload Software:

- 1. Click the Maintenance menu.
- 2. From the Software Management menu, click Software Upload to show the Software Upload area.

Software Updat	te	×
Update File	:	Select
-Software Informa	tion	
Software Name	:	
Software Number	:	
Update Server		
IPAddress	: 10 0 0 100	
Password	:	
Restore	Update	Close

- 3. Click the **Select** button to show the Open window.
- 4. Select update file (vdr.tar) and click the **Open** button.
- 5. Check the displayed Software information is correct.
- 6. Enter the IP address 10.0.0.100 in the IP address box in the Update Server area.

- 7. Enter password.
- 8. Click the **Update** button.

After the updating is completed, the VDR is automatically restarted.

### 6.2 Password Management

The password can be changed for a serviceman to access the equipment. Contact FURUNO to get the default password to use during installation.

#### Serviceman password

- 1. Click the Maintenance menu.
- 2. Select Change Serviceman Password from Password Management to show the Change Serviceman Password window.

Change Serviceman Password	×
Old Password :	
Change Password	
New Password :	
Confirm New Password :	
Change to Default	
	OK Cancel

- 3. Enter current password in the Old Password box.
- 4. Enter the new password in the New Password box of the Change Password area.
- 5. Enter new password again, in the Confirm New Password box.
- 6. Click the **OK** button.

#### Audio password

The audio password set at the VDR viewer can be removed to enable audio access without password.

- 1. Click the Maintenance menu.
- 2. Select Change Audio Password from Password Management to show the Change Audio Password window.
- 3. The confirmation window appears; click the **OK** button.

# 6.3 Record Comparison

The integrity of the DRU and Backup HDD recordings can be compared.

Follow the procedure as shown below:

- 1. Click the Maintenance menu.
- 2. Select Record Comparison to show the Record Comparison window.

The results are shown every 15 seconds in the Record Comparison window.

Result	
0K	
OK	
0K	
OK	
	OK           OK

# 6.4 Easy Setup

This feature sets equipment settings in batch and creates a data file of those settings.

Default template: The default template is created with the settings entered at installation.

- 1. Click the Maintenance menu.
- 2. Select Easy Setup to show the Template Selection window.



- 3. Select Default Template.
- 4. Click the Start button to show the Easy Setup window.

Easy Setup	×
a root	
🗄 🧰 Radar	
E C Audio	
🗄 💼 Digital	
🗄 🦳 Serial	
E. C. Analog	
	1
S	ave Close

5. Right click the channels (Radar, Audio, Digital, Serial, Analog), then select Edit to show the Equipment Selection window.

Equipment Selection		×
Equipment Directory		
<mark>⊖ radar</mark> ⊕ — Radar Interface		
Information		
Category	Туре №	
Br and	Data Name	
Interface		

- 6. From the Equipment Directory window, select equipment connected to the selected channel, and then click the **OK** button.
- 7. Repeat steps 5 and 6 to select equipment settings for each channel.
- 8. Click the **Save** button in the Easy Setup window to show the Save window.

- 9. Select where to save the file and enter file name.
- 10. Click the **Save** button.

Specific template: Use a file already created

- 1. Click the Maintenance menu.
- 2. Select Easy Setup to show the Template Selection window.
- 3. Check Specified Template.
- 4. Click the **Select** button, and then select the file to edit.
- 5. Click the **Start** button to show the Easy Setup window.
- 6. Right click the channels (Radar, Audio, Digital, Serial, Analog), then select Edit to show the Equipment Selection window.
- 7. From the Equipment Directory window, select equipment connected to the selected channel, and then click the **OK** button.
- 8. Repeat steps 6 and 7 to select equipment settings for each channel.
- 9. Click the **Save** button in the Easy Setup window to show the Save window.
- 10.Select where to save the file and enter file name.
- 11. Click the **Save** button.

# 6.5 Equipment Management

This feature controls the import and export of equipment settings.

#### Import data file:

Import data files of equipment settings created in Easy Setup, etc. to the VDR.

- 1. Click the Maintenance menu.
- 2. Select Import from Equipment Management to show the Open window.
- 3. Select the data file to import and click Open.

#### Export data file:

Export data files of equipment settings from the VDR to a PC.

- 1. Click the Maintenance menu.
- 2. Select Export from Equipment Management to show the Save window.
- 3. Enter file name.
- 4. Click the **Save** button.

# 6.6 PC\_RAP

This feature enables the same operation of the RAP (Remote Alarm Panel) from a PC. Select PC\_RAP from the Tool menu to show the PC\_RAP window.

, 	_		UNO	C
	RAP LEDs SAVE	NORMAI	LERROR	
	-Backup HDD Information		Button	
	Selected : AR	EA 2	SAVE	
	Size: 3	7575 MB		
Alar	m			
	Time 🛆	Number	Name	т
		and the second s	A ranke	J
- Pend	ling Alarm			
Pend		Number	Name	
Pend	ling Alarm 	Number 302	Name Serial O2CH No Connection	
- Pend	ling Alarm 	Number 302 303	Name Serial O2CH No Connection Serial O3CH No Connection	
Pend	ling Alarm 	Number 302	Name Serial O2CH No Connection	
- Pend	ling Alarm Time ▼ 08/10/2008 17:53:37:909 08/10/2008 17:53:34:910 08/10/2008 17:153:22:909 08/10/2008 17:17:18:909 08/10/2008 17:17:15:918	Number 302 303 304	Name Serial O2CH No Connection Serial O3CH No Connection Serial O4CH No Connection Serial O5CH No Connection Serial O5CH No Connection	
Pend	ling Alarm Time ∇ 08/10/2008 17:53:37:909 08/10/2008 17:53:34:910 08/10/2008 17:53:32:909 08/10/2008 17:17:16:909 08/10/2008 17:17:15:918 08/10/2008 17:17:14:917	Number 302 303 304 305 306 307	Name Serial O2CH No Connection Serial O3CH No Connection Serial O4CH No Connection Serial O5CH No Connection Serial O7CH No Connection	
- Pend	ling Alarm Time ▼ 08/10/2008 17:53:37:909 08/10/2008 17:53:34:910 08/10/2008 17:153:22:909 08/10/2008 17:17:18:909 08/10/2008 17:17:15:918	<b>Number</b> 302 303 304 305 306	Name Serial O2CH No Connection Serial O3CH No Connection Serial O4CH No Connection Serial O5CH No Connection Serial O5CH No Connection	

The buttons in the PC\_RAP window function as shown below:

- **SAVE:** Stop recording in the area where recording is currently being done.
- ACK: Silence audio alarm.

#### The PC\_RAP display shows the following information with LEDs:

RAP\_LEDs: Display the status of LEDs on the RAP.
Save: The Save button blinks yellow when pushed. When the 4 memory areas have data recorded to them, the Save button lights orange when pushed.
Normal: Lights (green) where there are no unconfirmed or not restored alarms.
Error: Flashes (red) for not confirmed alarm. Lights (red) for unrestored alarm.

#### Backup HDD Information: Display status of backup HDD:

**Selected:** Display current recording area and its status in green for normal operation, and in red for abnormal operation. **Size:** Display capacity of backup HDD.

#### Alarm area displays unconfirmed alarms:

**Time:** Display time alarm was generated. **Number:** Display number of alarm. **Name:** Display name of alarm

#### Pending Alarm displays the unrestored alarms out of confirmed alarms only:

Time: Display time alarm was generated. Number: Display number of alarm. Name: Display name of alarm.

# 6.7 Other

#### Status Monitor

The status monitor feature provides comprehensive data about the status of the VDR. From the menu bar, click Tool> Status Monitor to show the Status Monitor window.

🐇 Status Monitor	
Reload Save Update	<u></u>
SYS NAME : VR-3000 POWER: (STAT) CONNECT: (STAT)	SYSTIME :20/10/2008 15:12:29
VDR VERSION: 2450031-02.21 AC : (0N ) GPS : (1 )	UTCTIME :20/10/2008 15:12:29
RAP VERSION:2450026-01.04 DC : (OFF ) PDV : (CONNECT ) SYS STAT : NORMAL BATT : (ON )	DIFFTIME:O sec
SIS SIAI : NURMAL BAII : (UN )	
NETWORK: (MAC ADDRESS / IP ADDRESS / SUBNET MASK )	PROC STAT (START COUNT) (START TIME )
ETHER1 : ( /10.0.0.100 /255.0.0.0 )	SCADASERV (1 ) (16/10/2008 17:44:12:379)
ETHER2 : ( /172.31.24.1 /255.255.0.0 )	JBSERV(1))(16/10/2008-17:44:14:693)
	RADARSERV(1))(16/10/2008-17:44:20:102)
REC DEVICE: (CONNECTION/CAPACITY/DISK COUNT/REC COUNTER/ROUNDTRIP/REC AREA NO)	AUDIOSERV (1 ) (16/10/2008 17:44:19:001)
DRU : (CONNECT /5801 MB /1 /81634367 /79 /1 )	LOGGER(1))(16/10/2008 17:44:13:410)
HDD : (CONNECT /37575MB /1 /81634357 /38 /2 )	MMDELISERV(1 )(16/10/2008 17:44:21:203)
	DSERV (1 ) (16/10/2008 17:44:59:707)
JB STAT: (BOOT /APP /STAT ) AUDIO : (VALUE ) VIDEO : (RESOLUTION/SIZE ) JB1 : (01.01/01.04/CONNECT ) V1 : (0 ) R1 : (1280x1024 /3932160 B)	, (io) io) ioo iii iii ioo)
JB1 : (01.01/01.04/CONNECT ) V1 : (0 ) K1 : (1280x1024 /3932180 B) JB2 : (- /- /- ) V2 : (-576 ) K2 : (1280x1024 /3932180 B)	
JB3 : (- /- /- ) M1/M2 : (5952 ) R3 : (1200x1024 / 3932160 B)	
JB4 : (- /- /- ) M3/M4 : (2048 ) R4 : (1280x1024 / 3932160 B)	
JB5 : (- /- /- ) M5/M6 : (-1600 )	COMPSERV (1 ) (16/10/2008 17:44:17:901)
JB6 : (- /- /- )	
JB7 : (- /- /- )	
JB8 : (- /- /- )	
	0.0123*52 SI17: SI33: SI49: SI65:
SI01:20/10/2008 15:12:28.543 \$GPGNS,151228.615,8915.125,N,13943.254,E,M,15.3,m,-,1( SI02:20/10/2008 15:12:27.964 \$ERTRD,1,88.6,P,79.1,P,216.0*46	0,0123*52 5111. 5155. 5149. 5165. SI18: SI34: SI50: SI66:
SIO2.20/10/2008 15:12:21.984 \$ERIAD, 1, 88.8, 7, 19.1, 7, 218.0*48 SIO3:20/10/2008 15:12:28.843 \$IIFIR, S, 151036.FD, ., 932, V, V, TEST*0C	SI10. SI34. S150. S166. SI19: SI35: SI51: SI67:
SI03.20/10/2008 15:12:28.204 \$HEHDT, 0.2, T*2D	SI20: SI36: SI52: SI68:
SI05:20/10/2008 15:12:28.184 \$SDDPT. 19.7.15.2.30.0*6F	SI21: SI37: SI53: SI69:
SI06:20/10/2008 15:12:28.184 \$ERETL, S, 151035.00, 0, 11, 20, B, 6*21	SI22: SI38: SI54: SI70:
SI07:20/10/2008 15:12:28.805 \$IIFIR, S, 151036.FD, ,, 576, A, A, TEST*00	SI23: SI39: SI55: SI71:
SI08:20/10/2008 15:12:28.584 \$IIGEN, 3069, 151036.00, 6A03, GHIJKLMNOPQRSTUV*0A	SI24: SI40: SI56: SI72:
	Close
	CIOSE

The buttons in the Status Monitor window work as shown below:

**Reload:** Settings for automatic refreshing of the status monitor.

ON: Turn automatic refresh OFF.

**OFF:** The Status Monitor is refreshed every five seconds.

Save: Available when Reload ON is selected. The contents of the Status Monitor can be saved to a text file.

**Update:** Update the Status Monitor display.

**Close:** Close the Status Monitor display.

#### VDR Error List

This feature compiles all the errors shown on the RAP for easy reference. Access from Menu>Tool>VDR Error List.

No	Title	Detail	
HDD	BACKUP_HDD_MISSING	Backup HDD not connected to VDR or no memory area	
018	Backup HDD No connection	This indicates that the BACKUP has been disconnected more than 9 O seconds.Connect BACKUP HDD or check LOG and repair/replace	
022	DRU No Connection	DRU has been diconnected more than 90 seconds.Connect DRU again or check LOG and repair/replace	
026	GPS Large Time Difference	This indicates that the time difference between system time and time supplied by UTC source is more than 10 seconds.Restart VR-3 000/S.Try to see if the CMOS clock is set correctly.if no set it and restart VR-3000/S.If yes, find out why the time source devic e GPS is delivering "out of bands" time info	
042	RADAR No Connection	One od the active/enabled video channels can't grab from the ch annel. This can be either because radar is turend OFF or wrong co nfiguration. If radar is turned OFF, press ACK on the RAP to silen ce alarm. Error will clear when radar is turned ON again. If radar is ON, check installation(cabling) and configuration.	
082	RAP no Connection	RAP is missing Connection to RAP is lost. Check cable connected t o RAP. Reconnec RAP.	-
084	No alarm panel connection	No alarm panel connection. Check connection to alarm panel	1
088	JB No Connection	Indicates that Junciton Box (no.1) is missing Check Cable and IP -address setting	
094	Backup HDD Recording Failure	Indicates that Backup is inactive-not storing data.Check connect ion to Backup HDD.if not still restart recording, restart VDR.	
098	DRU Recording Failure	Indicates that DRU is inactive not storing data.Check connection to DRU if not still restating recordings, please restart VDR.	
170	VDR Configuration Failure	Data can not be stored because of abnormal VDR configuration. Res	1.

The VDR error list contains the following information:

- **NO.:** Display the number of the error.
- **Title:** Display the name of the error.
- **Detail:** Display details about the error.

#### Exchange Check

This feature removes the alarms generated when replacing the DRU, or backup HDD. Access Menu>Tool>Exchange Check, select either DRU or Backup HDD, and click **OK**.

Exchange	Check Confirma	ation (DRU)	X
?	Check the change in DRU alarm?		
	OK	Cancel	

Reboot Reboot the VDR. This page intentionally left blank.